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ADDENDUM NO. 1 
 

TOWN OF GLASTONBURY, CONNECTICUT 

BIDDING AND CONTRACT REQUIREMENTS AND SPECIFICATIONS 

FOR 

NUTMEG LANE PUMP STATION UPGRADE 

This addendum amends and/or supplements the Bid Documents as indicated below.  Only these items 
alter the Bid Documents; any verbal discussions or responses are hereby declared null and void. The 
Bidder shall indicate the receipt of all previously issued Addenda on the Proposal Form.  Each holder 
of the Bid Documents registered with the Owner shall receive a copy of the Addendum. 
 
CLARIFICATIONS 
 
1. A non-mandatory pre-bid conference was held at the Nutmeg Lane Pump Station on Wednesday, 

April 11, 2012 at 10:00 AM.  A copy of the sign-in sheet is included on Page 7 of 17 to Page 9 of 
17 in this Addendum. 

 
2. All work shall be conducted under the Town Plan and Zoning Commission Special Permit with 

Design Review and Wetlands Regulated Activity Permit. The local permits were approved during 
the design phase.  These pages were not included in design documents and are included on Page 
10 of 17 to Page 12 of 17 in this Addendum. 

 
3. In addition to the proposed lay down area identified on Drawing C-3 of the Contract Drawings, 

the Contractor may also utilize a portion of the Town's Fire Training Facility property accessible 
from Nutmeg Lane.  This shall be coordinated with the Owner and the Glastonbury Fire 
Department during construction. 

 
QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS 
 
Pre-Bid Conference and Site Walk (4/11/12) 
 
1. Q: Will the building permit fee for this project be waived? 

 A: The local building permit fees are waived ($17 per $1,000 of project costs) but the 
State of Connecticut Education fee ($0.26 per $1,000 of project costs) is not waived 
and shall be the responsibility of the contractor to pay. 

 
2. Q: Where are the two upstream manholes to the Pump Station located?  

 A: Sewer As-Builts from 1966, showing the locations of the upstream manholes and 
force main route, are included on Page 15 of 17 to Page 17 of 17 in this Addendum.  
Please be advised that these drawings do not accurately represent current site features 
and shall be used for information only when establishing the contractor's bid.  

 
3. Q: What is the last day to submit questions about contract documents?  

 A: April 20, 2012 is the last day to submit questions. 
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4. Q: Is a back up generator required on site to maintain emergency power during 
construction?  

 A: Contractor is responsible for maintaining both normal and emergency standby power 
to the pump station at all times during construction whether it be for the existing or 
the new pumps.  See Specifications Section 16000, Page 2, Item 1.1.F.c) and Item 
1.1.D.d) for additional information. 

 
5. Q: Are diesel back up pumps acceptable for bypass pumping?  

 A: Yes.  diesel pumps will be allowed as a back-up to the primary electric bypass pump. 
 

6. Q: What is the pressure in the force main?  
 A: The maximum pressure in the force main when the pumps are running is 15-psi.  The 

maximum static head is approximately 8-psi.  
 

Kovacs Construction Corporation RFI #1 (April 16, 2012) 
 
7. Q: In the period of time between when the existing generator building is demolished 

and the new generator is started up, do we need to provide a temporary electrical 
generator for back-up power to the existing pumps? 

 A: Contractor is responsible for maintaining both normal and emergency standby power 
to the pump station at all times during construction whether it be for the existing or 
the new pumps.  See Specifications Section 16000, Page 2, Item 1.1.F.c) and Item 
1.1.D.d) for additional information. 

 
8. Q: Has the existing generator building been checked for hazardous material?  

 A: No.  The project shall be bid assuming no hazardous material.  Prior to the issuance 
of the Notice to Proceed, the Owner will conduct a survey on the existing building 
materials and any required abatement will be dealt with through a change order per 
the contract General Conditions. 

 
9. Q: Are there any existing borings on the site?  

 A: There are no existing boring available but there is some information of the soils on 
the profile drawings of the incoming sewers included in this addendum. 

 
10. Q: Will the Town of Glastonbury charge building permit fees on the project?  

 A: The local building permit fees are waived ($17 per $1,000 of project costs) but the 
State of Connecticut Education fee ($0.26 per $1,000 of project costs) is not waived 
and shall be the responsibility of the contractor to pay. 

 
11. Q: Is there any specification on the landscaping materials?  

 A: Landscaping is limited to the planting of four (4) 6-foot tall arborvitae shrubs and 
restoration of existing grassed areas disturbed during construction via reseeding.  
Arborvitae shrubs are shown on Drawing C-3 and detailed on Drawing C-4.  
Revegetation measures are provided in Note 10 on Drawing C-5.  

 
12. Q: How long is the existing force main? 

 A: The existing force main is approximately 500-feet long.  Sewer As-Builts from 1966, 
showing the locations of the upstream manholes and force main route, are included 
on Page 15 of 17 to Page 17 of 17 in this Addendum.  Please be advised that these 
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drawings do not accurately represent current site features and shall be used for 
information only when establishing the contractor's bid. 

 
The Associated Construction Company RFI #1 (April 17, 2012) 

 
13. Q: The Chromalox model name given in the Electric Unit Heater Schedule 

(Chromalox LUH-02-81-34) does not meet the requirements mentioned in the 
written part of the spec (section 15766A, “Washdown Electric Unit Heaters”). The 
Chromalox LUH model series unit heaters are NOT wash down. If they want 
“WASH DOWN”, instead they need model “HD3D-300” for 3 kW or HD3D-200 
for 2 kW. Please specify power supply available (208v, single phase still ?). Please 
advise. 

 A: The model provided in the Electric Unit Heater Schedule is correct.  Specifications 
Section 15766A has been replaced with Section 15766 in this addendum.  

 
Delray RFI #1 (April 18, 2012) 
 
14. Q: Do you have an exact location on the northernmost sewer manhole ands how far 

from the wetwell it is? 
 A: Sewer As-Builts from 1966, showing the locations of the upstream manholes and 

force main route, are included on Page 15 of 17 to Page 17 of 17 in this Addendum.  
Please be advised that these drawings do not accurately represent current site features 
and shall be used for information only when establishing the contractor's bid. 

 
15. Q: How long is the existing force main and is it 8"?  

 A: See response above. 
 

16. Q: Please verify the rebar needed in the 8" slab on grade.  The Sections on S-3 show a 
top layer but the call out says T&B, EW? 

 A: Only one layer is required. 
 

17. Q: Will any rock encountered underground that needs to be removed be handled as a 
change order? 

 A: No ledge is anticipated to be encountered.  All excavation work being conducted is 
located in previously excavated/disturbed areas.  If ledge is encountered, it will be 
dealt with by a negotiated contract change order. 

 
18. Q: Will the town pay for the natural gas used for generator start-up and testing? 

 A: Contractor will be responsible to pay for all natural gas used until the generator has 
been successfully started-up and tested.   

 
19. Q: On Page 00310-6, "Code of Ethics", wants to know if the GC has reviewed.  Can 

this be added to the Addendum, or is it too big and the GC must go to Town Hall? 
 A: The Town of Glastonbury's Code of Ethics can be viewed from the Town of 

Glastonbury's website (www.glasct.org) or from the following direct link: 
  http://www.glasct.org/Modules/ShowDocument.aspx?documentid=65   
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20. Q: Door Frames:  The Door Schedule for the frames seems incorrect.  P-101 should 
be #2 and P-102 & P-103 should be a #1? 

 A: Refer to Drawing Item #1 in this addendum.   
 
 

SPECIFICATIONS 
 
1. Table of Contents.  DELETE Section "15766A - Washdown Electric Unit Heaters" in its entirety 

and REPLACE with Section "15766 - Electric Unit Heaters".   
 
2. Section 00310, Page 4, Item 6.  CLARIFICATION.  All items listed under Item 6 shall be 

submitted in triplicate with the Bid.  
 
3. Section 15766A, DELETE this section in its entirety and REPLACE with Section 15766 included 

on Page 13 of 17 to Page 14 of 17 in this Addendum. 
 
 
DRAWINGS 
 
1.  Drawing A-4, "Door and Frame Schedule", CHANGE the Frame type from "1" to "2" for Door P-   
101, CHANGE Frame Type from "2" to "1" for Door P-102 and CHANGE Frame Type from "2 to 
"1" for Door P-103. 
 
2.  On drawing E-4 ADD the following to the Notes: 

6. Provide a site lighting pole in the location as shown on civil drawing C-3. This shall be 
located at the northeast corner of the pump station and within the fenced area as shown on 
drawing C-3. Provide an aluminum pole and all mounting hardware which extends at least 
15' from finished grade.  Install the pole in concrete sonotube for a complete installation.  
Provide pole mounted light fixture as shown on lighting fixture schedule. Provide 12-inch 
sonotube to extend 4' - 6" below grade with a 12 inch reveal. Install 18 inches of crushed 
stone below sonotube and 12 inches around the sonotube at the bottom. 

 
3.  On drawing E-6, Nutmeg Pump Station Modifications Plan, Electrical Room; ADD the   

following legend tag number 23 to the item located on the left side of the double door. This       is 
to be listed in the Equipment Legend as "Emergency Generator E-stop Pushbutton" and the item 
listed as "not used" shall be removed. 

 
4.  On drawing E-6 ADD the following to the Notes: 

15. Provide a 120V, 20A, single pole switch for light pole.  Mount light switch next to the E-Stop 
push button for the Emergency Generator on the North wall of the Electrical Room.   Provide 
2#12 & 1#12 GND in 3/4" RGS conduit from LP-1 to light switch and extend 2#12 & 1 #12 
GND, 3/4 "RGS conduit from light switch underground to light pole from LP-1, circuit #27.  

  
5.  On drawing E-7 ADD the following light to the Lighting Fixture Schedule: 
 Code:  PL 
 Type: Metal Halide 
 Lamping:  (2) 250W 
 Mounting:  Pole Mount 
 Manufacture: Nite Brites 
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 Catalog Number:  FLM250-2/SQS415G11-T24 
 Volts: 120V 

Description:    Floodlight Fixture/Pole Combination.  Double-250W MH FLM  
Flood; 6x6 Dist.; Slipfitter incl.; lamp incl; MT.  Square straight 4", 15', 
11Ga' 2-3/8" Tenon; with bullhorn. 
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15766-1 
 

SECTION 15766  
 

ELECTRIC UNIT HEATERS   
 
 
PART 1 - GENERAL 
 
1.1 DESCRIPTION 
 A. Work Included:  Furnish and install electric unit heaters as shown on the Drawings and 

as specified except electric wiring. 
 B. Related Work Specified Elsewhere: 
  1. Mechanical is specified in the appropriate Sections of this Division.   
  2. Electrical wiring is specified in Division 16. 
 C. Other Trades:  Cooperate with other trades whose work is to be coordinated with 

electric unit heaters.   
 
1.2 QUALITY ASSURANCE 
 A. Standards and Codes: 
  1. Underwriters' Laboratories, Inc. 
  2. National Electric Code. 
 B. Acceptable Manufacturers: 
  1. Markel. 
  2. Chromalox. 
  3. Trane Co. 
  4. Berko. 
  5. Or approved equal. 
 
1.3 SUBMITTALS TO THE ENGINEER 
 A. Submit shop drawings, manufacturer's literature, maintenance data and operating 

instructions as specified in the General Conditions of the Construction Contract.   
 
1.4 DELIVERY, STORAGE AND HANDLING 
 A. Deliver in manufacturer's unopened containers as job progress requires.   
 B. Storage:  Store in unopened containers in a weathertight building.   
 C. Handling:  Exercise care when handling heaters to prevent damage of any nature.   
 
PART 2 - PRODUCTS 
 
2.1 MATERIALS 
 A. Heaters: 
  1. Capacities as shown on the Drawings. 
  2. Mounting accessories as shown on the Drawings.   
  3. Individually adjustable discharge louvers.   
  4. Fin tube metal sheathed, steel or cast aluminum heating elements.   
  5. Automatic reset thermal overheat protection.   
  6. Totally enclosed continuous fan-duty type fan motor with built-in thermal 

overload protection.   
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  7. Aluminum, propeller-type fan.   
  8. Steel cabinet with standard finish.   
  9. Magnetic contactor mounted and wired in cabinet.   
  10. Fused control transformer when required for thermostat or fan operation.   
  11. Wall thermostat.   
   
PART 3 - EXECUTION 
 
3.1 INSTALLATION 
 A. Install using manufacturer's recommendations and as shown on the Drawings.   
 
3.2 ADJUSTING AND CLEANING 
 A. Adjust operation and clean to the satisfaction of the Engineer.   
 
 
 

END OF SECTION 
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